IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST VIRGINIA 


CASE No. 16-0640 

DANNY WEBB and 

DANNY WEBB CONSTRUCTION, INC., 


Respondents Below, Petitioners, 

Appeal from a final order of the 
Circuit Court of Fayette County in 
Civil Action No. 16-C-9. 

v. 

NORTH HILLS GROUP, INC., 

Petitioner Below, Respondent. 

PETITIONERS' BRIEF 

George A. Patterson, III (WV Bar No. 2831) 


Ronda L. Harvey (WV Bar No. 6326) 


Roger G. Hanshaw (WV Bar No. 11968) 


Counselfor Petitioners 
BOWLES RICE LLP 
600 Quarrier Street 
Post Office Box 1386 
Charleston, West Virginia 25325 
(304) 347-2115 
Facsimile: (304) 343-2867 
rhanshaw@bowlesrice.com 

mailto:rhanshaw@bowlesrice.com

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. 	 The Circuit Court erred by failing to apply the clear and unambiguous terms of the Lease 
Agreement which authorizes Danny Webb Construction, Inc. ("Webb Construction") to 
operate an injection well on the leased premises. 

2. 	 The Circuit Court erred by finding that the Lease Agreement required Webb Construction 
to drill an oil or natural gas well on the leased premises before Webb Construction's right 
to utilize the leased premises for injection well purposes was triggered. 

3. 	 The Circuit Court erred by finding that North Hills Group, Inc. ("NHG") had a right to 
unilaterally terminate the Lease Agreement despite the complete absence of a termination 
provision of any kind in the Lease Agreement. 

4. 	 The Circuit Court erred by failing to even address the estoppel effect ofNHG's 
acceptance ofInjection Rental payments from Webb Construction for years prior to the 
purported termination of the Lease Agreement. 

5. 	 The Circuit Court erred by disregarding the uncontroverted testimony of the West 
Virginia Department of Environmental Protection and finding that Webb Construction's 
operation on the leased premises constitutes a nuisance and has the possibility to 
constitute a threat to public health and safety. 

6. 	 The Circuit Court erred by relying on extrinsic evidence to interpret the language of the 
Lease Agreement despite the finding by the Circuit Court that the terms of the Lease 
Agreement are clear and unambiguous. 

7. 	 The Circuit Court erred by relying on irrelevant, inadmissible, hearsay and opinion 
testimony when formulating its Order. 

8. 	 The Circuit Court erred by finding, despite a complete lack of evidence, that the 
corporate veil of Webb Construction should be pierced to impose personal liability on 
Webb Construction's shareholder, Danny E. Webb. 

9. 	 The Circuit Court erred by granting an injunction prohibiting Webb Construction from 
exercising its rights under the Lease Agreement on the leased premises. 
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


Summary of Relevant Facts 

Webb Construction and NHG entered into an Oil and Gas Lease ("Lease Agreement") on 

April 17, 2008. (Lease Agreement, JA 435.) The Lease Agreement was executed on behalf of 

Webb Construction by Danny E. Webb, and on behalf ofNHG by Philip D. Mooney, an attorney 

and then-president ofNHG. The Lease Agreement granted Webb Construction the right to drill 

for oil and natural gas on NHG's property in Fayette County, West Virginia (the "leased 

premises"), and the right to inject fluids into the leased premises. (Lease Agreement at ~ 14, JA 

435,444.) NHG receives compensation under the Lease Agreement if Webb Construction 

exercises either right. If Webb Construction exercised its right to drill a productive natural gas 

well, NHG would receive a royalty payment based on the quantity of natural gas produced. 

(Lease Agreement at ~ 3, JA 437-38.) If Webb Construction exercised its right to operate an 

injection well, NHG would receive a fixed yearly fee ("Injection Rent" or "Injection Rental"). 

(Lease Agreement at ~ 14, JA 444.) 

When the Lease Agreement was executed, a well already existed on the leased premises 

(the "508 Well"). (JA 340-42.) Webb Construction expended over $80,000.00 to rework the 508 

Well to make it either (1) a productive natural gas well, or (2) suitable for use as an injection 

well. (JA 341-42,356,407.) When the 508 well proved unproductive of oil and natural gas, 

Webb Construction immediately converted it into an injection well. (JA 342.) NHG gave its 

written consent to Webb Construction's proposed use of the 508 well when NHG submitted a 

signed Surface Owner Waiver to the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection 

raising no objection to the issuance of an injection well permit to Webb Construction. (JA 796.) 
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Since placing the 508 Well into service as an injection well, Webb Construction has paid 

NHG over $80,000.00 to maintain the Lease Agreement. (JA 148, 157,356.) This includes a 

delay rental l payment of $72,480.00, which extended the Lease Agreement for four years, and 

Injection Rental payments of$3,624.00 per year for years 2012,2013, and 2014. (JA 793-95.) 

At no time during this period did NHG raise any objection to Webb Construction's injection well 

operations on the leased premises, and at no time did NHG make a demand that Webb 

Construction drill a well for oil or natural gas. (JA 354-56.) 

NHG accepted Webb Construction's injection rental payments for three years and never 

objected. (JA 793-95.) Webb Construction first became aware of any concern at all from NHG 

when NHG sent Webb Construction a letter dated July 24, 2015, stating that NHG was 

terminating the Lease Agreement (the "Termination Letter"). (JA 137-38.) NHG gave Webb 

Construction no prior notice of its intention to terminate the Lease Agreement, and it made no 

demand that Webb Construction drill a well on the leased premises. (JA 356.) When Webb 

Construction tendered the 2015 Injection Rental on or about December 17, 2015, (JA 824-25.) 

after three years of accepting the payments without so much as a mention of an objection, NHG 

refused to accept the 2015 Injection Rental payment and returned the check to Webb 

Construction. (JA 400.) 

Procedural History 

After NHG refused to accept Webb Construction's 2015 Injection Rental payment, NHG 

filed a Petition for Declaratory Relief and Verified Petition for Injunctive Relief in the Circuit 

Court of Fayette County, West Virginia, on January 15, 2016. Webb Construction filed a 

I Delay rental payments are payments made by a lessee to extend the primary term of a lease agreement. 
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Motion to Dismiss on March 31, 2016, and the Circuit Court held an evidentiary hearing on May 

12,2016, and May 17,2016. Following the evidentiary hearing, the Circuit Court ordered 

counsel for NHG and Webb Construction to submit proposed orders containing proposed 

findings of fact and conclusions oflaw. Both parties submitted proposed orders, and on June 7, 

2016, the Circuit Court entered an order, substantially in the fonn of the proposed order 

submitted by NHG, denying Webb Construction's motion to dismiss and granting NHG's 

Petition for Declaratory Relief and Verified Petition for Injunctive Relief. Webb Construction 

filed its Notice of Appeal on July 6,2016. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

Webb Construction and NHG are parties to a valid Lease Agreement which grants Webb 

Construction the rights to both drill for oil and natural gas, and to inject fluids into the leased 

premises. The Lease Agreement provides that Webb Construction may maintain the agreement 

in full force and effect as long as Webb Construction continues injecting fluids into the leased 

premises and pays NHG an annual Injection Rental fee. Webb Construction has complied with 

all its obligations under the Lease Agreement and the Lease Agreement remains a valid contract 

between NHG and Webb Construction. 

The Lease Agreement expressly contemplates that NHG will benefit separately from each 

of the two authorized uses of the leased premises. rfWebb Construction drills for oil or natural 

gas, Webb Construction is required to pay NHG a royalty based on the amount of oil or natural 

gas extracted from the leased premises. rfWebb Construction uses the leased premises for 

injection well operations, then Webb Construction must pay NHG a flat rate per year. Under 

either arrangement, NHG benefits financially from the Lease Agreement. The separate fonns of 
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consideration provided for in the Lease Agreement clearly illustrate that the Lease Agreement 

provides for each right to exist independent of the other. 

Webb Construction is not required to drill for oil or natural gas under the Lease 

Agreement. On its face, the Lease Agreement provides that NHG will receive a financial benefit 

if Webb Construction either drills for oil or natural gas, or uses the leased premises for injection 

well operations. IfNHG intended to require that Webb Construction drill for oil or natural gas, it 

could have made such a requirement in the Lease Agreement. It did not. Absent such an 

affirmative covenant to drill, the Lease Agreement authorizes Webb Construction to maintain the 

Lease Agreement by payment ofa flat rate Injection Rental each year. Webb Construction has 

made the required annual Injection Rental payments, and the Lease Agreement remains in full 

force and effect. 

In consideration for the Injection Rental payments, the Lease Agreement gives Webb 

Construction the right to inject a variety of fluids into the leased premises. NHG's argument that 

Webb Construction's injection rights are limited to aqueous solutions of sodium chloride fails on 

its face. The Lease Agreement specifically provides that Webb Construction may inject " ... air, 

gas, water, salt water, brine and other fluids/rom any source into the subsurface strata ...." 

(emphasis added). This broad grant of injection authority is not limited in any way by other 

provisions of the Lease Agreement, and as long as Webb Construction continues to inject fluids 

associated with the production of oil and natural gas, Webb Construction has complied with its 

obligations under the Lease Agreement. 

Even though Webb Construction fulfilled its contractual obligations under the Lease 

Agreement, NHG argued that it terminated the Lease Agreement with the Termination Letter. 
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However, the Lease Agreement contains no provision authorizing one party to unilaterally 

terminate the agreement, and without such a provision no right to terminate exists under West 

Virginia law. Thus, the Circuit Court erred in holding that NHG had a right to terminate the 

Lease Agreement. Moreover, NHG was estopped from claiming a breach of the Lease 

Agreement by NHG's continued acceptance of annual Injection Rental payments for three years 

without raising a single objection or voicing a single concern over Webb Construction's 

activities on the leased premises. 

Without justification, and contrary to testimony from the West Virginia Department of 

Environmental Protection, which indicated that Webb Construction's operations were "great," 

(JA 312.) the Circuit Court determined that Webb Construction's injection well operation on the 

leased premises constitutes a nuisance. Furthermore, NHG is precluded from alleging that Webb 

Construction's injection well operations constitute a nuisance because the Lease Agreement 

approved by NHG specifically contemplated that the leased premises would be used for that 

purpose. The Circuit Court's finding that Webb Construction's operation constitutes a nuisance 

is contrary to the facts and precluded by the law. 

Webb Construction is a corporation formed under the laws of the State of West Virginia, 

and it has a legal existence separate and distinct from its shareholder, Danny E. Webb. Despite 

the complete absence of any evidence in support of such a finding, the Circuit Court held that the 

corporate veil of Webb Construction should be pierced and that Danny E. Webb should be held 

personally liable for the alleged wrongs of Webb Construction. Such a finding is inconsistent 

with the facts and contrary to the law. 
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The Circuit Court's Order relies on hearsay and opinion testimony which was both 

inadmissible and irrelevant. In formulating its Order, the court relied on affidavit testimony of 

Philip D. Mooney, despite the fact that the affidavit was made available to counsel for Webb 

Construction only moments before its introduction, and Mr. Mooney was never made available 

for cross examination. Moreover, the Circuit Court also relied on materials prepared by Avner 

Vengosh, though these materials had no bearing whatsoever on the proper interpretation of the 

Lease Agreement. 

The Lease Agreement is a valid contract between NHG and Webb Construction, and the 

Circuit Court had no basis for issuing an injunction preventing Webb Construction from 

continuing to exercise its rights under the Lease Agreement. Under every prong of the test for 

whether an injunction should issue, NHG failed to show that it was entitled to an injunction. 

Accordingly, the injunction should be dissolved and Webb Construction should be permitted to 

resume its lawful injection well operations on the leased premises. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Although the prior precedents of this Court squarely address the legal questions at issue 

in this case, the public policy implications of this case are of such importance that oral argument 

would aid the Court's decisional process. This case raises issues of plain error by the Circuit 

Court of Fayette County related to the proper application of a clear written agreement, the 

improper termination of a valid contract, and the reliance on improper evidence by the Circuit 

Court in granting an improper injunction which prevents a contractual party from enjoying the 

benefits of the valid contract. 

This appeal is appropriate for Rule 20 argument. 
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STANDARD OF REVIEW 

This Court has held that a de novo standard of review applies when this Court is called 

upon to interpret a written instrument. See Zimmerer v. Romano, 223 W. Va. 769, 679 S.E.2d 

601 (2009) ("Thus, we apply a de novo standard of review to the circuit court's interpretation of 

[a] contract.) (citing HN Corp. v. Cyprus Kanawha Corp., 195 W.Va. 289, 294, 465 S.E.2d 391, 

396 (1995) (per curiam)). 

ARGUMENT 

I. 	 The Circuit Court erred by failing to apply the clear and unambiguous terms 
of the Lease Agreement which authorizes Webb Construction to operate an 
injection well on the leased premises. 

The Lease Agreement between Webb Construction and NHG is clear. The agreement 

grants Webb Construction the right to explore for oil or natural gas, and the right to use the 

leased premises for injection purposes. (Lease Agreement, JA 435-46.) No interpretation of the 

Lease Agreement was necessary, and Webb Construction's right to operate an injection well on 

the leased premises is clear. 

Under the Lease Agreement, Webb Construction is authorized to inject any and all fluids 

related to oil and natural gas exploration into the leased premises with no obligation to drill a 

well for oil or natural gas. On the first page of the Lease Agreement, NHG granted Webb 

Construction the right to inject "air, gas, water, salt water, brine and otherfluids from allY 

source into the subsurface strata ...." (emphasis added) (JA 435.) The Circuit Court 

erroneously characterized the nature of the injection rights by limiting Webb Construction to 

injecting only "salt water," though neither the Lease Agreement nor the Circuit Court's Order 

provide any definition for that term. Rather than applying the clear and unambiguous terms of 
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the Lease Agreement, the Circuit Court incorrectly disregarded the very words used in the 

agreement, including the operative words "and other fluids from any source." 

Despite the clarity with which the Lease Agreement authorizes Webb Construction to use 

the leased premises for injection purposes, even without the broad grant of authority to inject 

"fluids from any source," Webb Construction would still have authority under the Lease 

Agreement to inject produced water from oil and natural gas production into the leased premises. 

The Circuit Court's Order refers to a definition attributed, without citation, to the United States 

Occupational Safety and Health Administration in which "brine" is defined as "water that has a 

quantity of salt, especially sodium chloride, dissolved in it; salt water." However, the Circuit 

Court ignored definitions of "brine" from legal authority2 and from the common usage in the oil 

and natural gas industry3 which both make clear that "brine" is more than a solution of sodium 

chloride in water. Though West Virginia has not attempted to define "brine" in our statutes or 

rules, our neighboring state of Ohio has, and defines "brine" as "all saline geological formation 

water resulting from, obtained from, or produced in connection with exploration, drilling, well 

stimulation, production of oil or gas, or plugging of a well." 4 Though the Lease Agreement, by 

its very terms, permits Webb Construction to inject fluids from any source, even without such a 

2 See Dow Chemical Co. v. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 433 F.2d 283, 284-85 (6 th Cir., 1970), 
where the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit discusses the tax treatment of a brine extraction 
operation and characterizes "brine" as "a fully saturated solution containing approximately 70 percent water and 30 
percent dissolved solids in the form of hydrated ions," and discusses the extraction of "sodium chloride or saIt, 
potassium chloride or potash, calcium chloride and magnesium hydroxide" from a brine solution. See also Martin 
Marietta Corp. v. United States, 7 Cl. Ct. 573, 575-76 (1985), where the Court recognizes that "brine is a clear 
liquid solution of solids dissolved in water. The dissolved solids, which are present in the brine as hydrated ions, 
represent approximately 30 percent of the brine's content by weight. The remaining 70 percent of the brine's weight 
is water." In Footnote 2 of Martin Marietta Corp., the Court indicates that a "[a] representative analysis of the 
ionic solids contained in the brine is as follows:" and then recites a lengthy list of various ions found in brine, 
including calcium, magnesium, sodium, potassium, strontium, ammonium, chloride, bromide, sulfate, and boric 
acid. 

3 See 8-B William & Meyers. Oil and Gas Law Scope (2015), defining "brine" as "[w]ater impregnated with 
salt frequently produced with oil." 

4 See Ohio Revised Code § 1509.01 (U). 
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permissive grant of authority, Webb Construction would still be within its rights under the Lease 

Agreement to inject produced water from the oil and natural gas industry. 

II. 	 The Circuit Court erred by finding that the Lease Agreement required Webb 
Construction to drill an oil or natural gas well on the leased premises before 
Webb Construction's right to utilize the leased premises for injection well 
purposes was triggered. 

A. 	 The Lease Agreement provides separate forms of consideration for 
extraction and injection and does not obligate Webb Construction to 
drill a well for oil or natural gas. 

The Lease Agreement grants Webb Construction the right to both drill for oil and natural 

gas, and the right to inject fluids into the leased premises. Webb Construction is authorized to do 

either or both of these activities on the leased premises without a concurrent requirement that it 

engage in the other activity. The Lease Agreement grants Webb Construction the right to inject 

fluids into the leased premises in two separate provisions. Specifically, in the second paragraph, 

(JA 435.) the Lease Agreement provides that Webb Construction is granted the 

" further exclusive right to inject air, gas, water, salt water, brine and 
other fluids from any source into the subsurface strata and any and all 
other rights and privileges necessary, incident to, or convenient for the 
economical operation of said land, alone or jointly with neighboring land, 
for the production, saving, storing and taking care of oil and gas and the 
injection of air, gas, water, brine and other fluids from the subsurface 
strata, [ ... ]." (emphasis added) 

Again, in numbered paragraph fourteen (JA 444.), the Lease Agreement further clarifies 

that Webb Construction has the right to use the leased premises for the operation of injection 

disposal wells by providing that 

"[Webb Construction] is further granted the right to inject salt water or 
brine in any new well or wells drilled or located upon the leased premises 
which prove unproductive of oil and or gas and/or coalbed methane in 
addition to the lessee's existing licensed salt brine disposal wells; provided 
such activities are licensed by the State and/or Federal government and to 
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store natural gas in any depleted formation thereunder, and in the event 
such salt brine injection and/or such gas storage enterprise continues 
beyond the primary or secondary term of this lease, then the lease shall 
continue infullforce and effect so long as lessee shall continue paying 
lessor annually thereafter the sum of Three Thousand Six Hundred 
Twenty-Four Dollars ($3,624.00) for such privilege so long as such 
activity continues." (emphasis added)

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