III. PETITIONERS' ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. The Circuit Court erred by failing to apply the clear and unambiguous terms of 
the Lease Agreement which authorizes Danny Webb Construction, Inc. ("Webb Construction") 
to operate an injection well on the leased premises. 

2. The Circuit Court erred by finding that the Lease Agreement required Webb 
Construction to drill an oil or natural gas well on the leased premises before Webb 
Construction's right to utilize the leased premises for injection well purposes was triggered. 

3. The Circuit Court erred by finding that North Hills Group, Inc. ("NHG") had a 
right to unilaterally terminate the Lease Agreement despite the complete absence of a

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

production, thereafter upon the cessation of production. Id. The lessee is likewise notified upon 

the execution of the lease of the fixed time in which it must obtain production and is assured of 

keeping the lease as long as production continues (or in some leases, for as long as operations for 

production continue). Id. (citing 3 H. Williams, Oil And Gas Law § 604 at 41 (1985)). 

Many modem oil and gas leases contain a "savings" clause called a "cessation of 

production" clause which, for example, modifies the ''thereafter'' provision of the habendum 

clause. McCullough, supra; Jolynne, supra. Under the latter, as discussed supra, the lease 

automatically terminates immediately upon the cessation of production during the "secondary" 

term, that is, after the expiration of the primary term of the lease. Id. A cessation of production 

clause applicable to the secondary term, extends a "grace" period to the lessee. It prolongs the 
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life of the lease for a specified period of time after cessation of production "from any cause" 

during the secondary term, and if operations are resumed during such period of time, the lease 

will not terminate but will remain in force for as long thereafter as operations continue (and if 

production results therefrom, then as long thereafter as there is production in paying quantities). 

Id. at 794 (citing 3 H. Williams, Oil And Gas Law §§ 604.4 at 66-67, 615.1 at 263-64 (1985». 

Paragraph 2 and 15 of the lease is the cessation of production clause of such lease. 

A habendum clause in an oil and gas lease providing for a short primary term and a 

secondary term for "so long as" production in paying quantities or operations therefor continue, 

or similar language, conveys a "determinable" interest, that is, an interest subject to a special 

limitation. Id. Such an interest automatically terminates by its own terms upon the occurrence 

of the stated event, namely, expiration of the primary term without production or operations at 

such time, or the cessation of production or operations during the secondary term. Id. Such a 

habendum clause does not convey an interest subject to a condition subsequent, with the lessor 

having the optionally exercisable power of declaring a forfeiture upon nonproduction or 

cessation of production. Id. Instead, the lessor has a possibility of reverter and does not need to 

take any affirmative action for the lease to terminate. Id. at 644, at 795 (citations omitted); 

Jolynne, Supra. In short, by the self-executing terms of such a habendum clause, the lease 

terminates, expires or lapses; it is not forfeited. Id. The distinction is not merely one of 

nomenclature. As a consequence of this distinction, the rule that equity abhors a forfeiture, as 

asserted by Petitioners, is not applicable. Id. 3 

3 Assuming arguendo that the concept of forfeiture is applicable, the outcome still would be the same. 
This Court has recognized that the Court has modified the rule disfavoring equitable forfeitures to the extent that 
"forfeiture is favored, when, instead of working a loss or injury contrary to equity, it promotes justice and equity and 
protects the owner against the indifference, laches, and injurious conduct of the lessee." Warner v. Haught, Inc., 
174 W. Va. 722, 730, 329 S.E.2d 88, 96 (1985) (citing Doddridge County Oil & Gas Company v. Smith, 154 Fed. 
970,978 (N.D.W.Va.1907»; see also Bethlehem Steel Co. v. Shonk Land Co., 169 W.Va. 310, 318-9, 288 S.E.2d 
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An important public policy is promoted by construing the "thereafter" provision of the 

habendum clause and a cessation of production clause of an oil and gas lease (or other mineral 

lease) as conveying an interest which automatically terminates without prior notice: 

The language of th[ ese] clause[s] clearly supports this 
construction. Furthermore, this construction seems in accord with 
the intent of the parties and sound policy. Upon termination of the 
lessee's estate, he is relieved of further obligations under the 
covenants of the lease. 

The primary purpose of the lease clearly is to obtain production. It 
would, therefore, seem in accord with this objective as embodied 
in the language of the habendum clause that the duration of the 
lessee's interest, after a period of exploration, be limited by the 
continued use of his interest for the purpose for which that interest 
was created. While the courts may be generally opposed to a 
construction that results in an automatic termination, the policy 
behind this rule is not applicable to an oil and gas lease. The 
special limitation placed on the duration of the lessee's interest is 
not a frivolous collateral condition or a whimsical limitation on the 
use of the interest. Furthermore, the limitation placed upon the 
lessee's interest is in accord with public policy, since upon the 
termination of the lessee's interest, new arrangements may be 
made for the development and production of the natural resources. 
The characterization of the 'thereafter' clause as a special 
limitation is also desirable in that the parties can usually proceed 
with certainty as to whether the lease has terminated or not. 

... Equitable rules against forfeiture have no application when the 
'thereafter' clause is characterized as a special limitation; if 
equitable factors are introduced to mitigate harsh results, 
uncertainty is created, and the primary objective of the lease, the 
production of oil or gas, may be subverted. (footnotes omitted). 

Id. at 797 (citing 3 H. Williams, Oil And Gas Law § 604 at 44-45 (1985) and Goodwin v. Wright, 

163 W.Va. 264, 267-68, 255 S.E.2d 924,926 (1979) (emphasizing the importance of production 

and development)). 

139, 144 (1982) (fmding that while conduct did not justify a forfeiture, it did justify the lessors' refusal to pennit 
renewal ofthe lease). Here, Petitioners' breach of the lease, as described herein, would favor forfeiture. 
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Applying these principles to this case, the Circuit Court correctly determined that the 

lease was terminated, by its own terms, when Petitioners failed to abide by the terms of the lease. 

Petitioners failed to take any efforts at gas production, but instead used the property as a fracking 

waste dump. From the outset, Petitioners simply ignored the explicit terms of the lease for their 

own ends which they blame on the WVDEP for instigating the idea of a fracking waste dump. 

Thus, as a matter of law, no default or forfeiture resulted in this case. This decision was not an 

abuse ofdiscretion, it was not erroneous and this Court should affirm it. 

4. The Circuit Court correctly addressed NHG's acceptance of payments from 

Webb Construction prior to the termination of the Lease Agreement. 

Petitioners assert equitable estoppel, but the doctrine of equitable estoppel is not 

applicable because Respondent did not hinder the Petitioners' performance and Petitioners failed 

to take any action toward production. Stuart v. Lake Washington Realty Corp., Syl. Pt. 6 & 7, 

141 W.Va. 627, 92 S.E.2d 891 (1956); Jolynne, 191 W.Va. at 416,446 S.E.2d at 504; Wilson v. 

Xander, Syl. Pt. 1 & 2, 182 W.Va. 342, 344, 387 S.E.2d 809,811 (1989). 

In this case, none of Respondent's acts hindered Petitioners' performance under the lease. 

Under the lease, Petitioners were to attempt a production well, but they did nothing to attempt 

production. In fact, there is no dispute that Petitioners failed to exercise due diligence toward 

attempting production. Moreover, Respondent accepted lease payments without knowledge of 

Petitioners' breach of the lease and activities which had nothing to do with oil and gas 

production as required by the lease. Pg. 9 (Order at ~19) and Pgs. 291-4 (May 12,2016, hearing 

transcript at pgs. 36:20-39:24). Respondent did not have notice of Petitioners' breach until 2015, 

when Ms. Hamilton first learned of the frack fluid waste injection on NHG property when she 

attended a Fayette County Commission meeting. Pg. 4-5 (Order at ~8) and Pgs. 271-2 (May 12, 
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2016, hearing transcript at Pgs. 16:16-17:15 (testimony of Patricia Hamilton)). Once 

Respondent learned of the breach, it promptly terminated the lease. Pg. 9 (Order at ~19), Pgs. 

137-8 (Petition Exhibit 8) and Pgs. 447-9 (Hearing Exhibit 3). Consequently, Respondent's 

acceptance of payments by Petitioners does not create an estoppel situation which would prevent 

the termination of the lease. 

5. The Circuit Court correctly evaluated the testimony of the West Virginia 

Department of Environmental Protection and finding that Webb Construction's operation 

on the leased premises constitutes a nuisance and has the possibility to constitute a threat to 

public health and safety. 

A. The West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection's 

testimony was of limited value. 

Petitioners rely heavily on the testimony of WVDEP inspector Terry Wayne Urban, but 

the Circuit Court found his testimony somewhat disappointing.4 Pg. 7 (Order at ~15 at ft. nt. 1) 

and Pgs. 432-3 (May 17, 2016, hearing transcript at pgs. 70:23-71 :8). The Circuit Court noted 

that Mr. Urban testified that, as part of his job as inspector, he permits wells, but he has never 

seen the DWC permit. Pgs. 315-6 (May 12,2016, hearing transcript at pgs. 60:18-61:17). Mr. 

Urban testified that he is not familiar with the regulations that he enforces. Pgs. 378-9 (May 17, 

2016, hearing transcript at pgs. 16:1-17:2). While Mr. Urban characterized DWC's operation as 

"great," DWC's permit was, at one point, revoked by the West Virginia Environmental Quality 

Board (WVEQB) and he has written Notices of Violation to DWC which he believed did not 

concern safety, public health or a danger to wildlife, but, when asked, he could not recall the 

specifics. Pgs. 405-6, 416-7 & 419-26 (May 17,2016, hearing transcript at pgs. 43:24-44:14; 

4 In fact, the Circuit Court almost held Mr. Urban in contempt of court for his attitude while testifying. 
Pgs. 300-1 (May 12,2016, hearing transcript at pgs. 45-46). 
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54:24-55:18; 57:9-18 & 64:5-7). As such, the Circuit Court correctly understood the limitations 

ofMr. Urban's testimony and gave it a proper weight. 

B. Webb's operations constituted nuisance. 

In pertinent part, paragraph 14 of the lease states: 

14. Lessee is further granted the right to inject salt 
water or brine in any new well or wells drilled or located upon the 
leased premises which prove unproductive of oil and or gas and/or 
coal bed methane in addition to the lessee's existing licensed salt 
brine disposal wells .... See Pgs. 3-4 (Order at ~7) and Pg.444 
(Hearing Exhibit 1 at pg. 11). 

As aforementioned, WVDEP records indicate that Petitioners injected fluids other than salt 

water, namely waste from hydraulic fracturing operations, into Well 508 (NHG lA well). Pg. 7 

(Order at ~16), Pgs. 42-109 (Petition Exhibits 3, 4 & 5), Pgs. 464-714 (Hearing Exhibits 7 & 8) 

and Pg. 792 (Hearing Exhibit 11). According to Mr. Urban, fluids, from some type of well, 

were being injected into the NHG lA well which would include something in addition to salt. 

Pgs. 7-8 (Order at ~17), Pgs. 376-7 (May 17,2016, hearing transcript at pgs. 14:22-15:13). Mr. 

Urban also testified that he has never reviewed any of the affluent testing for the DWC well. 

Pg;s. 302 (May 12,2016, hearing transcript at pg. 47:7-9). 

The analytical data, which is part of the permit application (Hearing Exhibits 7 & 8), 

indicates that diesel range organics, oil range organics, xylene and toluene are being injected into 

the NHG lA well. Pgs. 8-9 (Order at ~18), Pgs. 42-109 (Petition Exhibits 3, 4 & 5), Pgs. 464

714 (Hearing Exhibit 8) and Pg. 792 (Hearing Exhibit 11). Mr. Webb testified that he does not 

check whether there is anything other than salt water in the samples he sends to the WVDEP. 

Id., Pgs. 403-4 & 410-1 (May 17, 2016, hearing transcript at pgs. 41:23-42:22 & 48:9-49:14). 

Mr. Webb did not know how many gallons have been injected into the NHG lA well. Id., Pg. 
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406 (May 17,2016, hearing transcript at pg. 44:14-21). According to Mr. Webb, he injects what 

DWC's permit allows him to inject from the pits on his property to the NHG 1A well. Id. 

Ms. Hamilton, as President ofNHG, reviewed information about Petitioners' activities to 

formulate her belief about what was being injected into the NHG 1A well. Pgs. 6-7 (Order at 

~14), Pgs. 131-6 (Petition Exhibit 7); Pgs. 284-5 (Hearing Exhibit 2) and Pgs. 286-7 (May 12, 

2016, hearing transcript at Pgs. 31:19-32:17). Ms. Hamilton learned that the chemical 

composition of the surface water directly downstream from Petitioners' operations is typical of 

oil and gas wastewater and testing revealed elevated levels of several dissolved constituents 

including chloride, bromide, sodium, manganese, strontium and barium which are not consistent 

with the concept of elevated contaminant levels of chloride, bromides and others that originate 

form an acid mine drainage (AMD) source. Id. 

Based upon the foregoing, the Circuit Court found that the weight of the evidence 

established that that Respondent's property is being used improperly for a hydraulic fracturing 

waste dump which is something not anticipated by the parties' lease agreement. Pg. 12 (Order at 

~26). The creation of a hydraulic fracturing waste site is a nuisance and interrupts the quiet and 

useful enjoyment of Respondent's property. Id. Furthermore, Petitioners' creation of a 

hydraulic fracturing waste dump has the potential to create a liability situation for Respondent 

through potential contamination migration onto the properties of nearby landowners. Id. As 

such, the Circuit Court determined that Respondent terminated its oil and gas lease with 

Petitioners because they failed to abide by or breached the terms of the lease. This decision was 

not an abuse of discretion, it was not erroneous and this Court should affirm it. 

6. The Circuit Court correctly evaluated the evidence regarding the language of 

the Lease Agreement. 
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Petitioners assert that affidavit of Philip Douglas Mooney, Esquire, was parole evidence, 

but it was not utilized for parole evidence purposes. Mr. Mooney served as NHG president 

during the execution of the lease. Pgs. 4-5 (Order at ~8), Pgs. 715-6 (Hearing Exhibit 9) and Pgs. 

371-3 (May 17, 2016, hearing transcript at pgs. 9:8-11:24). The affidavit was utilized by Ms. 

Hamilton to explain her investigation about the situation before her tenue as NHG president, not 

to interpret the lease. [d. Respondent made no attempt to present evidence contrary to the 

explicit terms of the lease. Importantly and contrary to the assertions of Petitioners, the Circuit 

Court did not consider any parole evidence to interpret the lease. 

In reviewing the lease as a whole, the Circuit Court found the lease to be clear. P gs. 10-1 

(Order at ~23). Petitioners were to attempt production of the NHG lA well before converting the 

well into an injection well and then, if the well proved to be unproductive, they only were 

allowed to inject salt water, brine or other fluids related to gas production into the well. [d. The 

Circuit Court found that the weight of the evidence established that, by the clear and plain terms 

of the lease, Respondents failed to abide by their obligations and the agreement authorizes 

Petitioner to terminate the lease. This decision was not an abuse of discretion, it was not 

erroneous and this Court should affirm it. 

7. The Circuit Court correctly considered the evidence in formulating its 

Order. 

A. The affidavit of Philip Douglas Mooney, Esquire, was given the 

proper consideration by the Circuit Court. 

As aforementioned, Mr. Mooney served as NHG president during the execution of the 

lease. Pgs. 4-5 (Order at '8), Pgs. 715-6 (Hearing Exhibit 9) and Pgs. 371-3 (May 17, 2016, 

hearing transcript at pgs. 9:8-11 :24). The affidavit was utilized by Ms. Hamilton to explain her 
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investigation about the situation before her tenue as NHG president. Id. This evidence was not 

in dispute and was consistent with other testimony and evidence. Importantly Petitioners had a 

full and fair opportunity to cross-examine Ms. Hamilton regarding her investigation. 

Notwithstanding, assuming arguendo that the affidavit was improper, given the affidavit's 

limited role in the Circuit Court's decision, the consideration of the affidavit would constitute 

harmless error. Reed v. Wimmer, 195 W.Va. 199,465 S.E.2d 199 (1995). As such, the Circuit 

Court gave this affidavit the proper consideration, in light of the other testimony and evidence. 

This decision was not an abuse of discretion, it was not erroneous and this Court should affirm it. 

B. The Circuit Court gave the proper consideration to the West Virginia

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